
M ONSON-SULTANA JOINT UNION ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Board of Trustees Meeting Agenda 

Zoom Link: 

https://zoom.us/j/8587803370?pwd=cEJ1SFIEUGdxUjgrSWI2ZStjU1pYZz09 

AGENDA February 6. 2024 School Campus - New Classroom West 
Special Note: One Board member will be attending the meeting by teleconference at the following location: 

Jeff Belknap 

40175 Rd 112 

Dinuba, CA 93618 

5:30 P.M. 

The teleconference location is open to the public and any member of the public has an opportunity to address the School 

Board from a teleconference location in the same manner as if that person attended the regular meeting location. The 

School Board will control the conduct of the meeting and determine the appropriate order and time limitations on public 

comments from the teleconference location. 

1.0 Call Public Session to Order 
1.1 Roll Call to Establish Quorum 

2.0 Public Comment On Closed Session Topics 
General public comment on any closed session item will be heard. Pursuant to Board Policy, the Board may limit 
individual comments to no more than 3 minutes and individual topics to 15 minutes. It is recommended you begin 
your comments by stating your name. 

3.0 Adjourn to Closed Session 
3.1 Conference With Labor Negotiator (Government Code 54957.6) 

1. Agency Negotiator: Roberto Vaca, Superintendent
2. Employee Organizations

a. MSAT

4.0 Convene Regular Session (Estimated start time 6:30 PM) 
4.1 Flag Salute 
4.2 Report Action Taken in Closed Session (If any) 
4.3 Introduce Guests 

5.0 Opportunity for Members of the Public to Address the Board 
At this time, members of the public may comment on any item not appearing on the agenda. Under state law, matters presented under this item cannot 
be discussed or acted upon by the Board at this time. For items appearing on the agenda, the public is invited to make comments at the time the item 
comes up for Board consideration. Any person addressing the Board will be limited to a maximum of three {3} minutes so all interested parties have an 
opportunity to speak with a total of fifteen (15) minutes allotted for the Public Comment Period. Please state your name and address for the record. 

6.0 Approval of Minutes - January 16, 2024 (A) 

7.0 Correspondence 
7.1 TCOE First Period Interim Report Letter 

8.0 Superintendent's/Principal's Report 
8.1.1 Campus Update - ASB Student Board Representative 
8.1.2 2022-2023 California Dashboard Presentation by TLC Members

-1-









12.0 CLOSING ACTIVITIES: 

13.0 ADJOURNMENT: 

Delbert Quintana 

Robert Cepeda 

Vicki Worthley 

Trustee Quintana debriefed those present about the town hall attendance 
on Fentanyl that Mr. Vaca and Trustee Quintana went to. This included a 
possible resolution during next month's meeting to be able to administer 
Narcan to students. Trustee Quintana also discussed classroom 
observations which included engaged students with synchrony of 
teachers and students. Trustee Worthley thanked the Associate Student 
Body(ASB) and FUEL for the invitation of events such as Hot Cocoa 
with Santa and the Secret Santa Food Drive. She also discussed a 
successful In-Service and the observance of taking in data and utilizing it 
in the classrooms. Finally, Mr. Vaca touched base and thanked the Food 
Service and Maintenance, Operations, and Transportation (MOT) teams 
for getting the campus ready for the Spring Semester and working 
through the struggle of preparing meals during the freezer shut down 
which spoiled roughly $6,000 during Christmas break. 

Meeting adjourned at 7 :25 P.M. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

President Roberto Vaca Secretary 

Clerk Jeff Belknap Trustee 

Trustee Lynn Simmons Trustee 

-5-





Tim A. Hire 

County 
Superintendent 
of Schools 

P.O. Box 5091 
Visalia, California 
93278-5091 

(559) 733-6300
tcoe.org 

Administration 
(559) 733-6301
fax (559) 627-5219

Business Services 
[559) 733-6474 
fax (559) 737-4378 

�uman Resources 
:559) 733-6306 
'ax (559) 627-4670 

nstructional Services 
559) 302-3633
ax (559) 739-0310

ipecial Services 

559) 730-2910
ax (559) 730-2511

/lain Locations 

,dministration 
:uilding & Conference 
enter 
200 S. Mooney Blvd. 
isalia 

oe Avenue Complex 
000 Doe Ave. 
isalia 

!berty Center/
lanetarium &
::ience Center
1535 Ave. 264

salia

January 16, 2024

Tulare Caunty 
Office of Education 
Committed to Students, Support & Service 

Roberto Vaca, Superintendent 
Monson-Sultana Joint Union School District
PO Box25 
Sultana, CA 93666

SUBJECT: REVIEW OF FIRST PERIOD INTERIM REPORT, 2023-24

Dear Roberto:

The county office has reviewed the 2023-24 First Period Interim Report of the
Monson-Sultana Joint Union School District, and will be able to certify to the 
California Department of Education that the district has submitted a positive report
for the period ending October 31, 2023. 

We find that these documents reflect a satisfactory fiscal position and indicate the
district will be able to meet its financial obligations during this fiscal year and the 
two subsequent years as certified by your governing board. We thank you for the 
timely filing of your Interim Report with our office. The efforts of your staff in the 
preparation and submission of this report along with the supporting documentation is
appreciated. 

Please read our attached addendum for further comments and recommendations.

If you have any concerns or questions about this review, our comments or
recommendations, please do not hesitate to call at 733-6474. 

Sincerely,

a--�//Jf. 
Fernie Marroquin, Ed.D. � 
Assistant Superintendent, Business Services
Tulare County Office of Education

FM/sd
Encl. 

cc: Delbert Quintana, Board Pres:_ 7 _ ttDistrict Business Manager 





2023-24 First Period Interim Review 

Monson-Sultana Joint Union Elementary School District 
January 16, 2024 

Addendum 

and concentration grant funds to increase and improve services to unduplicated pupils until the funds are fully spent. 

This provision effectively disallows supplemental and concentration dollars from being carried over in an unrestricted 

fashion from one year to the next. This provision will be especially challenging for those districts that continually fall 

short of meeting their minimum proportionality requirement. 

In addition to the supplemental and concentration grant carryover provision, the 2021 Budget Act also increased the 

concentration grant percentage from 55% to 65%. The funding associated with this "add-on" must be used to increase 

the number of adults providing direct services to students. There has been a prompt added to the LCAP template 

whereby districts must describe how the additional concentration grant add-on funding will be used to increase the 

number of staff providing direct services at schools that have a high concentration of unduplicated students. This is an 

on-going accountability measure that will require tracking of how these concentration add-on funds are being spent. 

Lastly, due to the passage of AB1808 in 2018 the LCAP template now incorporates a section titled "Budget Overview 

for Parents" which is intended to help stakeholders better understand funding decisions included in the LCAP. This bill 

takes an additional step towards increasing transparency over those additional supplemental and concentration 

dollars generated by unduplicated students. The Budgeted Overview for Parents is intended to help stakeholders 

better understand funding decisions included in the associated LCAP. 

RETIREMENT COSTS 

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 68 (GASB 68) reporting requirements took effect for 

the 2014-15 financial statements for State and local government employers. Districts now need to recognize their 
proportionate share of the net pension liability (NPL) for both CalSTRS and CalPERS retirees in their accrual based 

financial statements (Audit Reports). 

The CalPERS Board adopted changes to the actuarial assumptions that became effective June 30, 2015. The changes 

result in a projected increase to the employer contribution rates for 2015-16 and for the following five years. The 

CalPERS Circular Letter 200-012-14 dated March 10, 2014 provided projected rates for 2014-15 through 2020-21 

which were subsequently modified as shown below. Both the CalPERS and CalSTRS rates shown for 2019-20 and 2020-

21 include the subsidy provided as part of the passage of AB84 on April 21, 2020 and rate offset included in the 2021 

State Budget. 

' ' , - - • - Caf PERS Actual and Projected Rates , 
2018-19 Actual 

18.062% 

2019-20 Actual 

19.721% 

2020:-21 Actual 

20.70% 

2021-22 Actual 

22.91% 

2022-23 Actual 

25.37% 

2023-24 Actual 

26.68% 

Likewise, Assembly Bill 1469 increased the contribution rates that employers, employees and the state pay to support 

the State Teachers Retirement System. Employer rates will continued to increase until 2020-21. Thereafter, the STRS 

employer rate is set by the CalSTRS board. 

- _. , - ,, , -.- , , , - , CalSTRS Rates per Education Code Sections 22901.7 and 22950.5 , , · •
·:, -

2018-19 Actual

16.28% 

2019-20 Actual 

17.10% 

2020-21 Actual 

16.15% 

2021-22 Actual 

16.92% 

2022-23 Actual 

19.10% 

2023-24 Actual 

19.10% 

Districts should be cognizant about including the PERS and STRS rate increases projected in 2024-25 and 2025-26 as all 

rate offsets we've experienced in previously adopted State budgets have expired. 

21Page· 

-9-



2023-24 First Period Interim Review 
Monson-Sultana Joint Union Elementary School District 

RESERVES 

January 16, 2024 
Addendum 

Reserve Caps - Our office continues to reinforce the need for reserves over the state minimum reserve requirements. 

Past experience has clearly demonstrated these minimum levels are not sufficient to protect educational programs 
from severe disruption in an economic downturn. The typical 3% reserve minimum represents less than two weeks of 

payroll for nearly all districts. Many LEAs have established reserve policies calling for higher than state minimum 

reserves, recognizing their duty to maintain fiscal solvency. 

In October 2017 the Governor signed Senate Bill 751 which made significant changes to the previous Senate Bill 858 
reserve cap requirements. These changes became effective January 1, 2018. The cap now allows for 10% of assigned 

or unassigned ending balances on a more limited number of district funds. It also exempts districts with fewer than 

2,501 average daily attendance from the cap requirement. 

The provisions of SB 751 are not imposed until the year after funds in the Public School System Stabilization Account 
(PSSSA) equals or exceeds 3% of Proposition 98 funding for school districts. The 2024-25 Governor's Budget proposal 

includes payments of $339 million in 2022-23, $288 million in 2023-24 and $752 million in 2024-25 into PSSSA. These 

deposits are offset by a withdrawal of $3 billion in 2023-24 and $2.7 billion in 2024-25 for a net total of $3.8 billion at 
the end of 2024-25. The 10% cap on school district reserves remains in place for the foreseeable future. It is 
recommended that districts impacted by the reserve cap take board action to commit funds for a specific purpose so 
they are not subject to the reserve cap. 

Full Accrual Financial Position - As audit reports have begun to recognize long-term pension obligations under GASB 
68, districts find their annual audit report may reflect a negative unrestricted balance on their Statement of Net 

Position. Beginning with fiscal year 2017-18, district audit reports will also reflect the full impact of long-term 
commitments for Other Post-Employment Benefits (Retiree health plans) under GASB 75. This will further reduce a 

district's unrestricted net position. This will likely result in public concern over the fiscal management of the school 

district and higher costs associated with long-term financing. We encourage districts to review and understand their 
district's unrestricted net position upon receipt of the district's audited financial statements for 2022-23 in case 

questioned. 

LOCAL CONTROL FUNDING FORMULA PROJECTIONS 

The next page provides a comparison of the district's adopted budget and the current interim's anticipated change in 

the unrestricted general fund balance. The differences primarily represent an updated beginning balance for the year, 

changes in state LCFF estimates and changes in district provided ADA estimates. 

3IPage 

-10-



2023-24 First Period Interim Review 
Monson-Sultana Joint Union Elementary School District 

Unrestricted General Fund Changes 

1,500,000 

1,000,000 

500,000 

(500,000) 

(1,000,000) 

(1,500,000) 

II Adopted Budget Projection 

El First Interim 

January 16, 2024 
Addendum 

The next graph presents the district's 2023-24 First Interim reserve status compared with the original adopted budget 

and state minimum reserve requirement. 

3,000,000 

2.500,000 

2.000,000 

1,500,000 

1,000,000 

500,000 

Minimum Reserve Standard 

2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 

D Minimum Reserve Requirement 0 Available Reserves -Adopted Budget c Available Reserves - Interim 

COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 

This section of our letter lists comments and recommendations we consider appropriate as a result of our review and 

current state budget projections. 

+ The district is projecting current and future reserves that reflect a sound fiscal position. We commend the

district for maintaining a secure financial position.

+ There are no additional comments or recommendations.

-11-

41Page 



MONSON-SULTANA JOINT UNION ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT 

Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

AGENDA SECTION: 

AGENDA ITEM: 

ATIACHMENTS: 

DISCUSSION: 

February 6, 2024 

8.0 SUPERINTENDENT'S REPORT 

8.1.1 CAMPUS EVENTS AT MSJUESD 

8.1.2 CALIFORNIIA DASHBOARD PRESENTATION 

The ASB Board Rep will provide information to the Board on past events and calendar 

dates/events that will be coming up on our campus. Additionally, TLC members will 

provide an update on the 2022-2023 California Dashboard Results. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

PROPOSED ACTION: 

NONE 

NONE 

-12-



MONSON-SULTANA JOINT UNION ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT 

Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

February 6, 2024 

AGENDA SECTION: CONSENT 

AGENDA ITEM: 9.1 LCAP MID YEAR REPORT 

2023-2024 LCAP Mid Year Report ATIACHMENTS: 

DISCUSSION: 

The Superintendent will present to the Board the 2023-2024 LCAP Mid Year Report. This report 

must be presented on or before February 28, 2024: 

• The report must include the following:

o An update on the LCFF Budget Overview for Parents

o All available mid-year outcome data related to the metrics identified in the current

year's LCAP. (23-24 LCAP Metrics)

o All available mid-year expenditure and implementation data on all Actions identified

in the current year's LCAP. (23-24 LCAP Actions)

• To best prepare for the reporting of required information, LEAs are strongly encouraged to

monitor the implementation progress on 2023-24 LCAP Actions, measure and monitor

progress on metric outcomes, and track expenditures tied to Actions in the plan. Results

reflected in the 2024 Dashboard (to be released on December 15th) will provide additional

data for report use.

RECOMMENDATION: 

ACTION REQUIRED: 

The Superintendent recommends approval of the 

LCAP Mid Year Report, as presented. 

Approval 

-13-



MONSON-SULTANA JOINT UNION ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT 

Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

AGENDA SECTION: 

AGENDA ITEM: 

ATTACHMENTS: 

DISCUSSION: 

February 6, 2024 

CONSENT ITEM 

9.2 MODERNIZATION PROJECT BIDS 

PUBLIC NOTICE TO BID 

BDM INC BID 

The District requested bids for the Phase 2 modernization project which consists of a new 

modular building with restrooms and playground. Bids were due on January 30th, 2024, at 2:00 

p.m. The District received one bid, from BDM, Inc. Superintendent recommends acceptance of

the bid from BDM, Inc.

RECOMMENDATION: 

PROPOSED ACTION: 

The Superintendent recommends that the Board 

approved the bid from BDM, Inc. 

APPROVE 

-14-





I 

I-' 

O'I 
I 

Name 

Monson-Sultana Elelmentarv Modular Librarv Build' 
Monson-Sultana Joint Union Elementary Schoof District 

Project # 18-28.1 

January 30, 2024 2:00PM 

Co. Name Phone No. I Fax No. 

_/1,-evi .......... /.i.p.f?--&.._ .......... -.... -·-··· .. ·---·· /l/#Y ec../. <Cvt�m.fecJ ............ . 7' 7 .. S-:-01.Y 9 ... -... -... ··---.. -.................... _ ...... _ ........ ----·· 
�,v; -1·,t,lop--ea @:'.:'. 4c�c. c1.v 7

... Ky /e., ___ J( Qc.,/t, HJ_ .. ___ _ g \) (h .. ;,.,'-·-------J:� _ S::8't' €3 __ e..lhino��@,B_D>",P<llM· 

·-·H·-·• .. ••••-H•-··--···--··-·---···-•••••••o•-..,,.,._. .. ____ ... , ... ,_ •. _ .......... ---·H-... Oo .. •••----, .. -••-•••••-H•••-·--··-··-.. ·---.. -...................... _,,_,...,..._ _____ ,,_.,J 

,_,......, ... ____ ,,, ........ -......... -... _.,_, ........... -.............. ,_,,,,-................. --·-··-· .. ····-······------··-·-···-······"''''''---·-·-· .. -··· .. ·

...... --
-

··-··-.................................................. -......... ----•• -.......... _ .. , ... ,,_ .... _,,.._, ............. -..... ________________ .................................... -••••••• ,t,,, ....... ,,-.,,-.,-..  --.. ------
·
·-·

·
---.. --t---···---· 

H-00-000--•-··-·-· .. -·•-•oo_,,,,.,,o,>•HOo_.,_,, .. ,_,...,, ... ,_ ............. -.. , --l,0oOHoo .................... ,, ... ._,, .... OMOOO-HHOOH-••.--oo-oo .. ,,.,,,0 .... 0000·0-00000HOOOo-•000000'0_ ... ,,_,_.,_,, .... ,,,.,_ooON000-,H0 .... 00_H_O 



I ;r
-n- )> - () 

z:. -I 

r 
0 
;a 

i � �
\.) ! ::)

m t1 
�

> 

� 
le- en 

� � m 

� 
8

m 

§ �
6 

D 
�

\ Addendum #1 

\ Addendum#2 

\
Mandatory Pre-Bid Job 

Walk 

\ Bid Form Signed 

\ Bid Security 

\
Designation of 

Subcontractors 

\ Non-Colluslon Declaration 

\
Sufficient Funds 

Declaration 

\
Fingerprinting Notice and 

Acknowledgement 

\
Worker's Compensation 

Certification 

\
Iran Contracting Act 

Certification 

\
DVBE Ceertiflcatlon 

\ 

\
DVBE Worksheet 

\ Proof of Registration 

' 

\ Roof Project Certification 

s ;+ u 
� z =r
:::0 0 l/) 

• C: 

._ 
ll.l 
::, 
C 
QI 

� 
w 

$J 
N 0 
N 
.i::,, 

QI "' 
N 

0 0 -a 
$ 

.... -00 ii1' ' :::, rv OJ 
� '.... 0 

5· 
M' 

C 
:::, 

e
r 

:::, 
,,, 
ro 
3 rt):::,.-+OJ 

� 
l/) 
n 
:;;; 
0 0 
0 
vi" 
M' .., 
� 

\) 
f� 
i; 
�

m 
� 
ch 

t.. 
0 

� 

i 
� 

� 
� 
en 

Q 

I 
�













Corporate Resolution of Signing Authority 

Lic#I078193 

240 North 12'" Ave 

Box 306 
Hanford, CA 93230 

lyleb@bdrninc.nec 
(559) 554-5848

WHEREAS, the Corporation is determined to grant signing and authority to certain person(s) described 
hereunder. 

RESOLVED, that the Board of Directors is hereby authorized and approved to authorize and empower 
the following individual to make, execute, endorse and deliver In the name of and on behalf of the 
corporation, but shall not be limited to, any and all written instruments, agreements, documents, 
execution of deeds, powers of attorney, transfers, assignments, contracts, obligations, certificates and 
other rnstruments of whatever nature entered into by this Corporation. 

Names: 

Lyle Bolte, President and Chief Executive Officer 

Signature: 

Christian Drake, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer 

Sign

� 

This resolution has been approved by the Board of Directors of BDM Inc. on October 5, 2023. 

, hereby certify and attest that all the information above is true and 

Assistant Secretary 

-23-

























I have read the foregoing and agree to comply with the requirements of this notice and 
Education Code sections 45125.1 and 45125.2 as applicable. 

Dated: 1/30/2024

Name: Lyle Bolte

Signa� 

Title: CEO

·-35-





(15) Assault with the intent to cmmnit a specified felony, in violation of
Section 220.

(16) Continuous sexual abuse of a child, in violation of Section 288.5.

(17) Carjacking, as defined in subdivision (a) of Section 215.

( 18) Rape, spousal rape, or sexual penetration, in concert, in violation of Section
264.1.

(19) Extortion, as defined in Section 518, which would constitute a felony violation of 
Section 186.22 of the Penal Code.

(20) Threats to victims or witnesses, as defined in Section 136.1, which would
constitute a felony violation of Section 186.22 of the Penal Code.

(21) Any burglary of the first degree, as defined in subdivision (a) of Section 460,
wherein it is charged and proved that another person, other than an accomplice,
was present in the residence during the commission of the burglary.

(22) Any violation of Section 12022.53.

(23) A violation of subdivision (b) or (c) of Section 11418.

A serious felony is any felony listed in subdivision ( c) Section 1192. 7 of the Penal Code. Those 
felonies are presently defined as: 

(1) Murder or voluntary manslaughter; (2) Mayhem; (3) Rape; (4) Sodomy by
force, violence, duress, menace, threat of great bodily injury, or fear of immediate
and unlawful bodily injury on the victim or another person; (5) Oral copulation by
force, violence, duress, menace, threat of great bodily injury, or fear of immediate
and unlawful bodily injury on the victim or another person; (6) Lewd or
lascivious act on a child under the age of 14 years; (7) Any felony punishable by
death or imprisonment in the state prison for life; (8) Any felony in which the
defendant personally inflicts great bodily injury on any person, other than an
accomplice, or any felony in which the defendant personally uses a firearm; (9)
Attempted murder; (10) Assault with intent to commit rape, or robbery; (11)
Assault with a deadly weapon or instrument on a peace officer; (12) Assault by a
life prisoner on a non-inmate; (13) Assault with a deadly weapon by an inmate;
(14) Arson; (15) Exploding a destructive device or any explosive with intent to
injure; (16) Exploding a destructive device or any explosive causing bodily injury,
great bodily injury, or mayhem; (17) Exploding a destructive device or any
explosive with intent to murder; (18) Any burglary of the first degree; (19)
Robbery or bank robbery; (20) Kidnapping; (21) Holding of a hostage by a person
confined in a state prison; (22) Attempt to commit a felony punishable by death or
imprisonment in the state prison for life; (23) Any felony in which the defendant

-37-















































This table displays CAASPP test results in Math by student group for students grades three through eight and grade eleven taking 
and completing a state-administered assessment. 

Mathematics test results include the Smarter Balanced Summative Assessment and the CAA. The "Percent Met or Exceeded" is 
calculated by taking the total number of students who met or exceeded the standard on the Smarter Balanced Summative 
Assessment plus the total number of students who met the standard (i.e., achieved Level 3-Alternate) on the CAAs divided by the 
total number of students who participated in both assessments. 

Double dashes(--) appear in the table when the number of students is ten or less, either because the number of students in this 
category is too small for statistical accuracy or to protect student privacy. 

The number of students tested includes all students who participated in the test whether they received a score or not; however, 
the number of students tested is not the number that was used to calculate the achievement level percentages. The achievement 
level percentages are calculated usin onl students who received scores. 

All Students 302 301 

Female 145 144 

Male 157 157 

American Indian or Alaska Native 0 0 

Asian 0 0 

Black or African American 0 0 

Filipino 0 0 

Hispanic or Latino 290 289 

Native Hawaiian or F!acific Islander 0 0 

Two or More Races 

White 11 11 

English Learners 115 115 

Foster Youth 

Homeless 

Military 0 0 

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 261 260 

Students Receiving Migrant Education Services 11 11 

Students with Disabilities 31 30 

2023 School Accountability Report Card Pag-60-:>f 18 

V 
C 'i/' 

. -·9.AASF!E 
Bercent-

' c'rtested » ' 
��"'"' "" - ",,= " "� 

99.67 

99.31 

100.00 

0 

0 

0 

0 

99.66 

0 

100.00 

100.00 

0 

99.62 

100.00 

96.77 

0.33 39.87 

0.69 36.11 

0.00 43.31 

0 0 

0 0 

0 0 

0 0 

0.34 38.41 

0 0 

0.00 81.82 

0.00 25.22 

0 0 

0.38 38.08 

0.00 27.27 

3.23 0.00 

Monson-Sultana School 









All Students 2.58 0 

Female 2.18 0 

Male 2.97 0 

Non-Binary 

American Indian or Alaska Native 0 0 

Asian 0 0 

Black or African American 0 0 

Filipino 0 0 

Hispanic or Latino 2.67 0 

Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander 0 0 

Two or More Races 0 0 

White 0 0 

English Learners 2.16 0 

Foster Youth 0 0 

Homeless 0 0 

Socioeconomically Disadvantaged 2.5 0 

Students Receiving Migrant Education Services 0 0 

Students with Disabilities 0 0 

Safety of students and staff is a primary concern of Monson-Sultana Elementary. The school is always in compliance with all 
laws, rules, and regulations pertaining to hazardous materials and state earthquake standards. The school's disaster 
preparedness plan includes steps for ensuring student and staff safety during a disaster and includes training for all staff. Fire 
and disaster drills are conducted on a regular basis throughout the school year. Lockdown drills are also conducted multiple 
times each school year. Students are supervised before and after school by certificated staff, classified staff, and 
administrators. Certificated staff and classified staff supervise students during lunch. There is a designated area for student 
drop off and pick up. Any person coming onto the school grounds during school hours must first report to the office to secure 
permission to be on the grounds and/or to conduct any business. The school's safety plan is reviewed and updated annually in 
January, and adopted by the Board on an annual basis. 

D. Other SARC Information Information Required in the SARC

2023 School Accountability Report Card 

The information in this section is required to be in the SARC but is not included in the 
state priorities for LCFF. 

Page-64-r 18 Monson-Sultana School 








































